
 
 
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
www . l inco lns hi re i l . gov 

AGENDA 
REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

Village Hall – Board Room 
Monday, April 23, 2018 – 7:00 p.m. 

Reasonable accommodations/auxiliary aids will be provided to enable persons with disabilities to effectively participate in any public 
meetings of the Board.  Please contact the Village Administrative Office (847.883.8600) 48 hours in advance if you need special 
accommodations to attend.  Regular Village Board Meetings will not proceed past 10:30 p.m. unless there is a consensus of the 

majority of the Trustees to do so. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 2.1 Approval of the April 9, 2018 Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes 
 
3.0 REPORTS OF OFFICERS           
 3.1 Mayor’s Report 
  3.11 Consideration of Appointment of Village Trustee to fill Vacancy Created 

as a Result of Karen Feldman’s Resignation from the Village Board 
 
  3.12 Swearing in of New Police Officers 
 
  3.13 Consideration of Appointments to Positions on Various Village Boards 
 
  3.14 Proclamation Recognizing Friday, April 27, 2018 as Arbor Day in the 

Village of Lincolnshire 
 

 3.2 Village Clerk’s Report 
 
 3.3   Village Treasurer's Report 
 
  3.31 Revenues and Expenditures for the Month of March, 2018 
  
 3.4 Village Manager's Report  
 
4.0   PAYMENT OF BILLS 

4.1   Bills Presented for Payment on April 23, 2018 in the amount of $441,147.00 
 

5.0  CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD (on agenda items only) 
 
6.0  PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS  
   
7.0  CONSENT AGENDA 

Items on the Consent Agenda will be approved by one motion. If a Trustee wishes to 
discuss any item, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed under 
“Unfinished Business”. 

 

            
    
  

 



Page 2 
AGENDA - Regular Village Board Meeting  
April 23, 2018 
 

7.1 Approval of Contract for the 2018 Sanitary and Storm Sewer Lining Project with 
Hoerr Construction of Peoria, IL, in an Amount not to Exceed $112,244.20 
(Village of Lincolnshire) 
 

7.2 Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Vernon Township Road 
District in Amount no to Exceed $50,000 (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 

7.3 Approval of a Contract to Graybar of Glendale Heights, IL for the Purchase and 
Installation of Light Poles, Light Heads & Lighting Components for Various 
Village Lighting Systems in an Amount not to Exceed $111,585.68 (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 
 

8.0  ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
8.1 Planning, Zoning & Land Use 
8.2 Finance and Administration 
8.3 Public Works 
 
8.4 Police 

8.41 Consideration and Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the Village of 
Lincolnshire to Participate in the Development of a Detailed Lake County 
9-1-1 Consolidation Plan (Village of Lincolnshire – Waiver of First 
Reading Requested) 
 

8.5 Parks and Recreation 
  8.6 Judiciary and Personnel  

  
9.0 REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 
10.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
12.0 ADJOURNMENT 



 
 
 
 
 
O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
w w w . l i n co l n s h i re i l . g o v  

2.1
MINUTES

REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING
Monday, April 9, 2018

Present:
Mayor Brandt Trustee Feldman
Trustee Grujanac Trustee Hancock
Trustee McDonough Trustee Servi
Trustee Leider Village Clerk Mastandrea
Village Attorney Simon Village Manager Burke
Chief of Police Leonas Public Works Director Woodbury
Village Treasurer/Finance Director Peterson Assistant Public Works Director/Village 

Engineer Dittrich

ROLL CALL
Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and Village Clerk Mastandrea called the 
Roll.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Girl Scout Troop 45275 led the Pledge of Allegiance

2.1 Approval of the March 26, 2018 Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes

Trustee Leider moved and Trustee McDonough seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting of March 26, 2018 as presented. The roll 
call vote was as follows: AYES: Trustees Leider, McDonough, and Hancock. NAYS: None. 
ABSENT: Trustees Feldman and Servi. ABSTAIN: Trustee Grujanac. Mayor Brandt 
declared the motion carried.

3.0 REPORTS OF OFFICERS
3.1 Mayor’s Report

Mayor Brandt made mention of the terrible weather the area has experienced 
recently.

Mayor Brandt welcomed Girl Scout Troop 45275 who will be presenting at the 
Committee of the Whole meeting and provided a brief summary of the difference 
between the Regular Village Board and Committee of the Whole meetings. 

3.2 Village Clerk’s Report - None

3.3 Village Treasurer’s Report - None

3.4 Village Manager’s Report – None



Page 2
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting
April 9, 2018

4.0 PAYMENT OF BILLS
4.1 Bills Presented for Payment on April 9, 2018 in the amount of $398,854.09.

Village Manager Burke provided a summary of the April 9, 2018 bills prelist 
presented for payment with the total being $398,854.09. The total amount is based 
on $184,885.94 for General Fund; $152,063.27 for Water & Sewer Fund; $14,716.12
for Vehicle Maintenance Fund; $25,541.67 for E 911 Fund; $225 for Sedgebrook 
SSA; and $21,422.09 for General Capital Fund.

Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Leider seconded the motion to approve the 
bills prelist dated April 9, 2018 as presented. The roll call vote was as follows: AYES: 
Trustees Leider, Grujanac, Hancock, and McDonough. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: 
Trustees Feldman and Servi. ABSTAIN: None. Mayor Brandt declared the motion 
carried.

5.0 CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD (on agenda items only)

6.0 PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

7.0 CONSENT AGENDA
7.1 Approval of Waiver of Internal Fees for a Special Education Facility, 16139 W. 

Port Clinton Road (Adlai E. Stevenson High School District 125)

7.2 Approval of an Ordinance Approving a Four Month Extension of Preliminary 
Plat of Subdivision for Lincolnshire Trails Planned Unit Development (KZF 
Development/Stack Real Estate)

7.3 Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the Retention of a Municipal Advisor, the 
Engagement of Bond Counsel, and the Selection of an Underwriter, by the 
Village of Lincolnshire, Lake County, Illinois each with Respect to the 
Proposed Issuance by the Village of Bonds to Refund Certain Outstanding 
Obligations of the Village (Village of Lincolnshire – Sedgebrook SSA)

Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Leider seconded the motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda. The roll call vote was as follows: AYES: Trustees Leider, Grujanac,
Hancock, and McDonough. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Trustees Feldman and Servi.
ABSTAIN: None. The Mayor declared the motion carried.

8.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS
8.1 Planning, Zoning & Land Use
8.2 Finance and Administration
8.3 Public Works

8.4 Police
8.41 Consideration and Approval of a Resolution Authorizing Membership in 

the Lake County Major Crimes Task Force (Village of Lincolnshire –
Waive of First Reading Requested)



Page 3
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting
April 9, 2018

Village Manager Burke provided a summary of a Resolution authorizing 
membership in the Lake County Major Crimes Task Force noting several 
months ago the Task Force Board, in concert with several Lake County 
Village Managers/Administrators, formed a By-Laws subcommittee to 
research and update the By-Laws and investigate risk management solutions 
to the benefit of the Task Force and its participating members. Various 
proposed By-Law changes are being recommended as stated in the packet 
but the most important aspect is creating a structure which will permit the 
Task Force to obtain commercial insurance coverage with a limit of $2 Million.

Trustee McDonough asked if the Task Force discussed a higher limit than $2 
Million. Village Manager Burke stated a higher limit was discussed and would 
have been preferred, but the group had challenges finding carriers interested 
in underwriting the agency. Village Manager Burke noted the group expected 
the current limits will increase over time as its experience matures and the 
insurance market develops a historical perspective on the Task Force’s loss 
history. Village Manager Burke noted all participating communities anticipate 
the limits increasing over time.

Trustee Grujanac asked if there is a time frame the insurance agent has 
given the Task Force to be able to obtain a higher amount of coverage. 
Village Manage Burke noted the insurance company has not given them a 
time frame.

Trustee Leider noted the By-Laws in the document are lengthy and asked if 
there was any notable differences from last year to current year. Village 
Manager Burke stated it is fairly consistent with most pooled 
intergovernmental agency cooperatives. The most important change is 
governance structure, how the budget would be approved, and how the 
membership dues will be set as a result of the insurance policy. Village 
Attorney Simon noted the voting structure has changed; stating there is one 
vote per community where before it was not as equal. 

Trustee Grujanac asked if there is vetting in terms of who becomes a 
members of the Task Force. Village Manager Burke stated there may be 
communities in Lake County that may elect not to be a part of the Lake 
County Task Force noting there is no obligation to participate.

Chief of Police Leonas noted Lincolnshire currently has a Detective and an 
Evidence Technician who serve as part of the Task Force. 

Trustee Hancock asked if there was a large liability that was potentially going 
to pass through to the local community, how will the liability be determined; 
and asked if each claim was on an ad hoc basis. Village Manager Burke 
stated his opinion is that in the past, when a number of communities had a 
claim filed against them as part of the Task Force, it was the communities 
with the deep pockets or better insured named in the claim. Village Manager 
Burke stated what the proposed update to the Task Force structure and 
insurability does and what was done recently with the Strong Lawsuit, is the 



Page 4
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting
April 9, 2018

communities work together to provide a unified defense to any lawsuit. By
having the Task Force have its own insurance will promote a unified 
response to any legal challenge. A brief discussion regarding liability and 
involvement followed. 

Trustee McDonough moved and Trustee Grujanac seconded the motion to 
waive the first reading requested of a Resolution authorizing membership in 
the Lake County Major Crimes Task Force. The roll call vote was as follows: 
AYES: Trustees Leider, Grujanac, Hancock, and McDonough. NAYS: None.  
ABSENT: Trustees Feldman and Servi. ABSTAIN: None. The Mayor declared 
the motion carried.

Trustee McDonough moved and Trustee Leider seconded the motion to 
approve a Resolution authorizing membership in the Lake County Major 
Crimes Task Force. The roll call vote was as follows: AYES: Trustees Leider, 
Grujanac, Hancock, and McDonough. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Trustees 
Feldman and Servi. ABSTAIN: None. The Mayor declared the motion carried.

8.6 Judiciary and Personnel

9.0 REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES
10.0   UNFINISHED BUSINESS
11.0 NEW BUSINESS  
12.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION
13.0 ADJOURNMENT

Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Leider seconded the motion to adjourn. The voice 
vote was unanimous and Mayor Brandt declared the meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE

Barbara Mastandrea
Village Clerk



RVB
3.11

V:\Shared_Files\Cover_Sheet\2018\2018_04_23_Appt_Trustee.doc

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING

April 23, 2018
Subject: Consideration of Appointment of Julie Harms Muth as Village 

Trustee to fill Vacancy Created as a Result of Karen Feldman’s 
Resignation from the Village Board

Action Requested: Consideration and Approval of Proposed Appointment
Originated By/Contact: Mayor Elizabeth Brandt
Referred To: Village Board

Summary / Background:
With the recent resignation of Trustee Feldman due to her victory in the Republican primary for
the 59th Illinois House District, there is a Village Trustee vacancy on the Village Board. Mayor 
Brandt recommends appointing Julie Harms Muth to fill the position. Please see attached 
biographical information on Ms. Muth.

Budget Impact: None. 

Service Delivery Impact: None.

Recommendation: Consideration and approval of proposed appointment.

Reports and Documents Attached:
Julie Harms Muth - Background/Biographical Information

Meeting History
Regular Village Board Meeting: 04/23/2018



Julie Harms Muth

Julie Harms Muth and her family, husband Michael Muth and sons Christopher (18) and Kyle 
(16), have been residents of Lincolnshire, IL for the last 9½ years.  Prior to that, the Muth family
lived in Buffalo Grove for 10 years in a School District 103 neighborhood.  Julie has been a
volunteer in a variety of capacities in the District 103 schools and has also provided volunteer 
support for her sons’ various sports and academic teams at Stevenson High School. Further, 
Michael was a long-serving member of the Lincolnshire Sports Association Executive Board as 
well as a coach of many LSA teams.  As any LSA volunteer knows, these commitments require
the support and contributions of the entire family.

Julie and her husband Michael are the owners of a small manufacturing business in Wheeling, 
IL and, in addition, Julie has been a practicing attorney for the last 25 years. Julie started her 
career and then served as Partner at Hinshaw & Culbertson in Chicago, IL where her practice 
focused on environmental law, insurance coverage and general commercial litigation. Following 
her time at Hinshaw, Julie was part of the management team for Waste Management, Inc.’s $1 
billion National Sales Department where she was responsible for negotiating and managing a 
variety of business transactions as well as handling employment law, bankruptcy, antitrust, risk 
management, legal training, contract management, litigation avoidance and managing outside 
counsel.  Subsequently, Julie served as the General Counsel for Response Team 1 (“RT1”), an 
emergency response firm based in Wheeling, IL. While at RT1, Julie was responsible for 
providing strategic legal guidance and legal support for RT1 and its business units in all areas of 
their respective operations. Currently, Julie is the head of her own small law firm where she 
provides legal counsel to both individuals and small businesses on general corporate 
transactions, employment and litigation matters. 

Julie earned a B.A. in History and International Studies from Emory University in Atlanta, GA 
and earned her J.D., cum laude, from Tulane University Law School in New Orleans, LA.

Julie is at a point in her personal and professional life where she is able to give back to the
wonderful community that has been her home for almost 10 years.  She welcomes the 
opportunity to work with the Trustees, Mayor Brandt and the Village team to do what she can to 
help the Village of Lincolnshire continue to be a great place to live.



3.13 RVB 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING

April 23, 2018

Subject: Appointment to Positions on Various Village Boards

Action Requested: Consideration and Approval of Proposed Appointments &
Reappointments

Originated 
By/Contact: Mayor Elizabeth Brandt

Referred To: Village Board

Summary / Background:
Pursuant to the Lincolnshire Village Code, the Mayor has the authority to appoint members to 
the Village’s various Advisory Boards and Commissions, subject to the consent of the Board of 
Trustees. Mayor Brandt recommends the following appointments/reappointments:

Architectural Review Board
(3 Year Term)

Term Expiration Reappointment or 
New Appointment

New Term 
Expiration

Cherise Kennerley (CHAIR) 5/01/2018 Reappointment 5/01/2021
Mike McCall 5/01/2018 Reappointment 5/01/2021
Paul Orzeske 5/01/2018 Reappointment 5/01/2021
Eric Tapia 5/01/2018 Reappointment 5/01/2021

Park Board
(3 Year Term)

Current Term 
Expiration

Reappointment or 
New Appointment

New Term 
Expiration

Ken Borgerding (Chair) 5/01/2018 Reappointment 5/01/2021
Michael Brouillard 5/01/2018 New Appointment

(from Alternate)
5/01/2021

Lee Fell 5/01/2018 Reappointment 5/01/2021
Sandra Wright 5/01/2018 Reappointment 5/01/2021
Michael Blasek (Alternate) 5/01/2019 New Appointment 

Police Pension Board
(2 Year Term)

Current Term
Expiration

Reappointment or 
New Appointment

New Term 
Expiration

Mickey Herst 05/01/2018 Reappointment 5/01/2020

Budget Impact: None. 
Service Delivery Impact: None.
Recommendation: Consideration and approval of proposed appointment/reappointments.
Reports and Documents Attached: 

Master Appointment List – Various Village Boards/Commissions
Michael Blasek - Application

Meeting History
Initial Referral to Village Board (RVB): 04/23/2018



NAME
TERM ENDING DATE TITLE

Kennerley, Cherise 2021 Chair

Baskin, Howard 2020 Member

Jensen, Todd 2020 Member

McCall, Mike 2021 Member

Orzeske, Paul R. 2021 Member

Tapia, Eric 2021 Member

Brian Santosuosso 2019 Alternate

Hancock, Mark N/A Trustee Liason

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD

3 Year Term (Alternate 1 Year Term)



NAME TERM ENDING 
DATE TITLE

Borgerding, Ken 2021 Chair

Brouillard, Michael 2021 Member

Campbell, Lee 2020 Member

Fell, Lee 2021 Member

Siegel, Suzi 2019 Member

Wright, Sandra 2021 Member

Zhou, Kai 2020 Member

Blasek, Michael 2019 Alternate

Grujanac, Mara N/A Trustee Liason

Updated 4/23/18

PARK BOARD

3 Year Term (Alternate 1 Year Term)



NAME TERM ENDING 
DATE TITLE

Lee, Steven 2019 President

Herst, Mickey 2020 Member

Hyde, Adam N/A Member

Quillinan, Pat N/A Beneficiary
Member

Watson, Jamie N/A Member

Peterson, Michael N/A Treasurer

Gerard Leider N/A Trustee
Liason

POLICE PENSION BOARD



The following was submitted from the Board Member Application form:

Your Name: Michael J Blasek

Your Email: mblasek78@yahoo.com

Your Address: 71 Cumberland

Telephone Number: 3127317310

Please select any or all Boards of Interest: Park Board

Please describe your educational and professional background: Bachelor PCHR - Western
Illinois University 
Founding member and former chairmen of the US Green Building Council - Illinois 
Vice President Spartan Surfaces - Commercial Architectural Products

Why do you wish to serve on a Board: It’s important to be of service to your community. I feel
this is a forum in which I could be of value to our village. 

In your opinion what are the most important issues facing the Village at this time: I’d like to
frame this answer as it applies to the role I’m volunteering for. I enjoy the parks in
Lincolnshire. It is one of the reasons I moved here. I’m obviously not intimate with all the
issues the village faces internally. Although from a citizens perspective, it’s a venue in which
we can engage the constituents of this community. The opportunity to educate and facilitate
interactions with the living environment is paramount. Importantly, there is a conservation
and environmental component that is crucial to our community. Last but not least , one can
never underestimate the value in continuous beatification of our village. 

What would your goals be as a member serving on a Board: I have no agenda to speak of. My
goal would be to understand and tackle challenges to help us meet our objectives. 

Please provide any additional comments: 



PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING FRIDAY, APRIL 27, 2018 AS
ARBOR DAY IN THE VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 

WHEREAS, In 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of 
Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, and

WHEREAS, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of 
more than a million trees in Nebraska, and

WHEREAS, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and

WHEREAS, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and 
water, cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce 
oxygen and provide habitat for wildlife, and

WHEREAS, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our 
homes, fuel for our fires and countless other wood products, and

WHEREAS, trees in our Village increase property values, enhance the economic 
vitality of business areas, and beautify our community, and

WHEREAS, the Village of Lincolnshire has been recognized as a Tree City USA 
for 28 years by the National Arbor Day Foundation and desires to continue its tree 
planting ways.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Elizabeth J. Brandt, Mayor of the Village of Lincolnshire 
do hereby proclaim the 27th day of April 2018 as Arbor Day in the Village of 
Lincolnshire, and I urge all citizens to support efforts to care for our trees and 
woodlands and to support our Village's community forestry program, and

FURTHER, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the hearts and promote 
the well-being of present and future generations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I sign my name this 27th day of April, 2018.
               

____________________________ _____________________________
Elizabeth J. Brandt, Mayor Bradly J. Burke, Deputy Village Clerk



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE PERIOD ENDING 3/31/2018
REVENUE / EXPENSE BUDGET SUMMARY FISCAL YEAR 2018

2016 Year-To-Date 2017 Year-To-Date
Revenue Expense OVER/(UNDER) REVENUE EXPENSE OVER/(UNDER)

GENERAL FUND
Revenue 2,391,203 2,715,128
Administration 70,942 76,671
Finance 85,961 80,494
Police 862,023 902,141
Community & Economic Dev. 241,919 159,077
Insurance & Common 380,954 371,271
PW: Administration 59,971 64,741
PW: Streets 226,031 267,112
PW: Parks & Open Space 253,039 202,109
Buildings & Grounds 36,476 34,797
Debt & Transfers - -

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 2,391,203$ 2,217,317$ 173,886$ 2,715,128$ 2,158,412$ 556,716$

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Water & Sewer Revenue 953,079 948,072
Water & Sewer Administration 247,918 248,089
Public Works Operating 753,912 803,658
Water & Sewer Improvements 107,173 26,417 103,368 18,198

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS 1,060,253$ 1,028,247$ 32,006$ 1,051,441$ 1,069,944$ (18,503)$

NON-OPERATING FUNDS
Motor Fuel Tax 49,455 - 49,455 50,689 - 50,689
Fraud Alcohol Drug Enforcement 1,079 - 1,079 1,490 - 1,490
Vehicle Maintenance 116,175 109,614 6,561 119,200 127,929 (8,729)
E-911 68,228 74,393 (6,164) 102,214 76,625 25,589
Park Development 77 - 77 1,240 8,615 (7,374)
Traffic Signals SSA 3 1,170 (1,167) 2 - 2
General Capital 8,925 32,269 (23,344) - 49,183 (49,183)

TOTAL NON-OPERATING FUNDS 243,942$ 217,446$ 26,496$ 274,835$ 262,352$ 12,483$

TRUST FUNDS
Police Pension Fund** 1,052,099 270,594 781,506 14,155 217,274 (203,118)
Sedgebrook SSA 4,819 776,553 (771,733) 5,095 788,818 (783,722)

TOTAL TRUST FUNDS 1,056,919$ 1,047,146$ 9,772$ 19,251$ 1,006,091$ (986,841)$

Agenda Item

**The Police Pension amounts are as of 02/28/2018.
The Pension Board contracts their accounting services;
which sometimes results in a reporting delay.

3.31



25.0% of Fiscal Year is Complete

Annual Budget Year-to-Date % Used Significant Facts

GENERAL FUND
REVENUES
     Taxes 11,090,000 2,385,956 21.5% Room & Adm % Used 21.9%

Sales Tax % Used 26.5%
Real Estate Transfer % Used 17.3%

     Licenses & Fees 691,700 182,510 26.4% Bldg Permits $28,810
Bldg Permits % of Licenses & Fees 15.8%

     Fines & Forfeitures 236,000 44,032 18.7%
     Allotments, Grants & Reimbursements 275,360 79,202 28.8%

Miscellaneous 90,100 8,612 9.6%
     Other Income 80,000 14,818 18.5%
     Transfers In - - 0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 12,463,160$ 2,715,128$ 21.8%

EXPENSES
     Personnel Expenses 264,890 70,492 26.6%
     Contractual Services 3,700 - 0.0%
     Other Charges 34,400 6,179 18.0%
Administration 302,990 76,671 25.3%

     Personnel Expenses 302,960 79,159 26.1%
     Contractual Services 22,950 294 1.3%
     Other Charges 5,375 1,040 19.4%
Finance 331,285 80,494 24.3%

     Personnel Expenses 3,767,240 759,146 20.2%
     Contractual Services 159,970 31,925 20.0%
     Commodities 19,000 564 3.0%
     Other Charges 183,725 33,106 18.0%
     Transfers Out 202,500 77,400 38.2%
Police 4,332,435 902,141 20.8%

     Personnel Expenses 460,920 109,966 23.9%
     Contractual Services 178,300 23,518 13.2%
     Other Charges 408,900 24,393 6.0%
     Transfers Out 4,800 1,200 25.0%
Community & Economic Dev. 1,052,920 159,077 15.1%

     Contractual Services 1,444,225 353,046 24.4%
     Commodities 14,400 5,000 34.7%
     Other Charges 81,000 13,165 16.3%
     Other Expenses - 60 0.0%
Insurance & Common 1,539,625 371,271 24.1%

Public Works
     Personnel Expenses 205,882 55,551 27.0%
     Contractual Services 36,300 7,381 20.3%
     Other Charges 12,225 1,809 14.8%
   Admin 254,407 64,741 25.4%

     Personnel Expenses 566,850 179,856 31.7%
     Contractual Services 466,400 9,946 2.1%
     Commodities 84,300 39,244 46.6%
     Other Charges 13,825 2,316 16.8%
     Transfers Out 143,000 35,750 25.0%
   Streets 1,274,375 267,112 21.0%

VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE
REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY FUND

March 31, 2018



Annual Budget Year-to-Date % Used Significant Facts

     Personnel Expenses 602,460 136,663 22.7%
     Contractual Services 607,200 27,771 4.6% Includes Insurance Covered Exp
     Commodities 56,000 8,280 14.8%
     Other Charges 15,725 1,970 12.5%
     Transfers Out 109,700 27,425 25.0%
   Parks & Open Space 1,391,085 202,109 14.5%

     Contractual Services 105,500 28,181 26.7%
     Commodities 18,000 5,166 28.7%
     Other Charges 3,000 249 8.3%
     Transfers Out 4,800 1,200 25.0%
   Buildings & Grounds 131,300 34,797 26.5%

     Transfers Out 1,700,000 - 0.0%
   Debt & Transfers 1,700,000 - 0.0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 12,310,422$ 2,158,412$ 17.5%

WATER & SEWER FUND
REVENUES
     Licenses & Fees 4,572,000 947,177 20.7%

Miscellaneous Revenue 10,000 50 0.5%
     Other Income 3,000 846 28.2%

TOTAL REVENUES 4,585,000$ 948,072$ 20.7%

EXPENSES
     Personnel Expenses 245,100 67,138 27.4%
     Contractual Services 251,860 77,865 30.9%
     Commodities 1,600 556 34.7%
     Other Charges 2,325 581 25.0%
     Other Expenses - - 0.0%
     Transfers Out 407,795 101,949 25.0%
   Administration 908,680 248,089 27.3%

     Personnel Expenses 541,120 146,302 27.0%
     Contractual Services 3,026,500 639,866 21.1%
     Commodities 28,200 3,993 14.2%
     Other Charges 32,800 1,571 4.8%
     Transfers Out 47,700 11,925 25.0%
   Operating 3,676,320 803,658 21.9%

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,585,000$ 1,051,747$ 22.9%

WATER & SEWER IMPROVEMENT FUND
REVENUES
     Licenses & Fees 200,000 - 0.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue - - 0.0%
     Other Income 2,000 1,420 71.0%
     Transfers 1,307,795 101,949 7.8%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,509,795$ 103,368$ 6.8%

EXPENSES
     Capital Outlay 2,007,000 18,198 0.9%

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,007,000$ 18,198$ 0.9%



Annual Budget Year-to-Date % Used Significant Facts

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND
REVENUES
     Allotments, Grants & Reimbursements 187,000 50,621 27.1%
     Other Income 400 69 17.2%

TOTAL REVENUES 187,400$ 50,689$ 27.0%

EXPENSES
     Capital Projects 175,000 - 0.0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 175,000$ -$ 0.0%

FRAUD, ALCOHOL & DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND
REVENUES
     Other Income - 1,490 0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES -$ 1,490$ 0.0%

EXPENSES
     Other Charges 60,630 - 0.0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 60,630$ -$ 0.0%

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE FUND
REVENUES
     Transfers 476,800 119,200 25.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 476,800$ 119,200$ 25.0%

EXPENSES
     Personnel Expenses 193,450 50,304 26.0%
     Contractual Services 153,450 32,344 21.1%
     Commodities 118,800 43,205 36.4%
     Other Charges 11,100 2,075 18.7%

TOTAL EXPENSES 476,800$ 127,929$ 26.8%

E911 FUND
REVENUES
     Licenses & Fees 273,000 66,506 24.4%
     Other Income 100 8 8.2%
     Transfers 35,700 35,700 100.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 308,800$ 102,214$ 33.1%

EXPENSES
     Contractual Services 308,800 76,625 24.8%

TOTAL EXPENSES 308,800$ 76,625$ 24.8%

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
REVENUES
     Other Income 236,100 1,240 0.5%

TOTAL REVENUES 236,100$ 1,240$ 0.5%

EXPENSES
     Other Charges 860,000 8,615 1.0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 860,000$ 8,615$ 1.0%



Annual Budget Year-to-Date % Used Significant Facts

TRAFFIC SIGNAL SSA
REVENUES
     Other Income - 2 0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES -$ 2$ 0.0%

EXPENSES
     Contractual Services 4,880 - 0.0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,880$ -$ 0.0%

GENERAL CAPITAL
REVENUES
     Grants - - 0.0%
     Other Income 917,740 - 0.0%
     Transfers  In 800,000 - 0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,717,740$ -$ 0.0%

EXPENSES
     Facilities 115,000 923 0.8%
     Equipment 227,320 - 0.0%
     Furniture & Fixtures 20,000 - 0.0%
     Storm Sewer & Water 629,000 10,639 1.7%
     Parks 404,000 21,564 5.3%
     Roadways 398,000 765 0.2%
     Vehicles 160,000 - 0.0%

Miscellaneous Capital 27,000 15,292 56.6%
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,980,320$ 49,183$ 2.5%

POLICE PENSION FUND**
REVENUES
     Taxes 849,750 - 0.0% Property Taxes

Miscellaneous Revenue 206,500 31,627 15.3%
     Other Income 143,750 (17,472) -12.2% Investment Income

TOTAL REVENUES 1,200,000$ 14,155$ 1.2%

EXPENSES
     Contractual Services 88,500 17,964 20.3%
     Other Charges 9,500 - 0.0%
     Other Charges 1,102,000 199,310 18.1%

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,200,000$ 217,274$ 18.1%
**The Police Pension amounts are as of 02/28/2018.  The Pension Board contracts their accounting services; which sometimes results in a reporting delay.

SEDGEBROOK SSA
REVENUES
     Taxes 1,161,600 245 0.0%
     Other Income 18,600 4,850 26.1% Interest Income

TOTAL REVENUES 1,180,200$ 5,095$ 0.4%

EXPENSES
     Contractual Services 17,700 68 0.4%
     Capital Outlay 1,162,500 788,750 67.8%

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,180,200$ 788,818$ 66.8%



Agenda Item
4.1

Column1 Column2
General Fund 190,378.65$
Water & Sewer Fund 209,569.37$
Motor Fuel Tax -$
Water & Sewer Improvement Fund 253.08$
Fraud, Alcohol, Drug Enforcement
Vehicle Maintenance Fund 4,387.40$
E 911 Fund
Park Development Fund 5,313.50$
Sedgebrook SSA
SSA Traffic Signal
General Capital Fund 31,245.00$

GRAND TOTAL 441,147.00$

                           ________________________________

VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE

BILLS PRESENTED FOR PAYMENT
04/23/2018

Brad Burke, Village Manager

V:\Finance\Dept\Accounts Payable\Prelist_APBankTrf.xlsx



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 1/7Page:04/19/2018 11:35 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 04/10/2018 - 04/23/2018
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: ACCURATE DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION

105.15Document Destruction 3/22/1815619613

105.15TOTAL VENDOR ACCURATE DOCUMENT DESTRUCTIO

VENDOR NAME: ADOBE SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
53.11April 2018 Creative Cloud Suite2018-04

53.11TOTAL VENDOR ADOBE SYSTEMS INCORPORATED

VENDOR NAME: AFTERMATH
105.00Decontaminate Squad 103JC2018-9917

105.00TOTAL VENDOR AFTERMATH

VENDOR NAME: AHUEJOTE, JUAN
25.00Refund overpayment of Parking Ticket 37191P37191

25.00TOTAL VENDOR AHUEJOTE, JUAN

VENDOR NAME: AIRGAS, INC
226.65Cylinder Rental9952184398

226.65TOTAL VENDOR AIRGAS, INC

VENDOR NAME: ALL CORPORATE VIDEO & PHOTO
700.00Videographer for National Night Out779

700.00TOTAL VENDOR ALL CORPORATE VIDEO & PHOTO

VENDOR NAME: ALPHA BUILDING MAINT. SERVICE INC.
198.48Janitorial svs Jan-March price increase per contract18604

2,084.57Janitorial services April 201818601
1,323.00Quarterly cleaning done 3-9 to 3-1118602

3,606.05TOTAL VENDOR ALPHA BUILDING MAINT. SERVICE IN

VENDOR NAME: AMAZON.COM
86.99Blu Ray Writer114-0513249-5854623
35.94Blu Ray Case and discs114-7408344-2185806

122.93TOTAL VENDOR AMAZON.COM

VENDOR NAME: ANCEL GLINK DIAMOND BUSH
57.50BD Bond Escrow Attorney Fee:405 Milwaukee Culv63212a

115.00BD Bond Escrow Attorney Fee 14600 Riverside Ro63212b
230.00BD Bond Escrow Attorney Fee 14600 Riverside Rd63212c
57.50BD Bond Escrow Attorney Fee 1700 Riverwoods Rd63212d

287.50BD Bond Escrow Attorney Fees_90 Half Day Rd_Gl63212e
115.00BD Bond Escrow Attorney Fee _275 Parkway_City63212g
862.50BD Bond Escrow Attorney Fee_325 Marriott Dr_He63212f

2,357.50March 2018 Legal Fees Personnel/Collective Barga63212
3,802.50March 2018 Legal Fees63212-1

7,885.00TOTAL VENDOR ANCEL GLINK DIAMOND BUSH

VENDOR NAME: APWA WORK ZONE
167.83Public Works Items - National Public Works Week219948

167.83TOTAL VENDOR APWA WORK ZONE

VENDOR NAME: APWA-CHICAGO METRO C
40.002018 Top Ten Luncheon Registration - Brad Woodb041818BW

40.00TOTAL VENDOR APWA-CHICAGO METRO C

VENDOR NAME: ARAMARK
83.91Weekly Uniform Rental - PW2081513193
83.91Weekly Uniform Rental - PW2081503508

167.82TOTAL VENDOR ARAMARK

VENDOR NAME: ARLINGTON HEIGHTS FORD
241.89Squad 98828654



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 2/7Page:04/19/2018 11:35 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 04/10/2018 - 04/23/2018
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: ARLINGTON HEIGHTS FORD

241.89TOTAL VENDOR ARLINGTON HEIGHTS FORD

VENDOR NAME: ATLAS BOBCAT, LLC
703.01Bobcat Utility CartBN5678
133.57Bobcat Utility CartBN5865

836.58TOTAL VENDOR ATLAS BOBCAT, LLC

VENDOR NAME: B & F CONSTRUCTION CODE SERVICES
895.50Plan Review_4 Overlook Pt_AON_p18-0030B49101

2,345.00March 2018 Inspections49132

3,240.50TOTAL VENDOR B & F CONSTRUCTION CODE SERVIC

VENDOR NAME: BADE SUPPLY
432.27Toilet Paper, Garbage Bags, Vinegar, Glass & Floor15217

432.27TOTAL VENDOR BADE SUPPLY

VENDOR NAME: BANNER PLUMBING SUPPLY COMPANY
169.76Sink & Sink Replacement Parts2387702

169.76TOTAL VENDOR BANNER PLUMBING SUPPLY COMPAN

VENDOR NAME: BASECAMP WEB SOLUTIONS
180.00March/April Web Consultant Fees2308

180.00TOTAL VENDOR BASECAMP WEB SOLUTIONS

VENDOR NAME: BLACKBURN MANUFACTURING CO.
677.64Julie Marking Paint0563510-IN

677.64TOTAL VENDOR BLACKBURN MANUFACTURING CO.

VENDOR NAME: BONTA ITALIAN MARKET
217.99Food for Police Department Meeting38886

217.99TOTAL VENDOR BONTA ITALIAN MARKET

VENDOR NAME: BUFFALO GROVE LINCOLNSHIRE COC
20.00April 2018 BG Lincolnshire Lunch Meeting attended1710

20.00TOTAL VENDOR BUFFALO GROVE LINCOLNSHIRE CO

VENDOR NAME: CALL ONE
1,908.2004/15/18 Monthly Phone Bill 112257404152018

1,908.20TOTAL VENDOR CALL ONE

VENDOR NAME: CHAIN O LAKES LUMBER
450.00Wood for Park Signs21797

450.00TOTAL VENDOR CHAIN O LAKES LUMBER

VENDOR NAME: CHICAGO TRIBUNE MEDIA GROUP
47.49BD  Escrow ZB Legal Notice 325 Marriott Dr_Heahr003544272

47.49TOTAL VENDOR CHICAGO TRIBUNE MEDIA GROUP

VENDOR NAME: CL GRAPHICS
148.21B. Gilbertson Business Cards0046675
277.45Letterhead #10 envelopes (3,000)46536

425.66TOTAL VENDOR CL GRAPHICS

VENDOR NAME: COMED
168.00Electrical Aggregation4712025006-04-2018
264.43Rate 25 streetlighting 3-8 to 4-6-186123019023-04-18
171.75Londonderry pumping 3-2 to 4-2-189047167009-04-18
93.29Farrington pumping 3-5 to 4-3-187299113001-04-18

112.58Westwood pumping 3-2 to 4-2-187128083006-04-18
131.17Fallstone pumping 3-5 to 4-3-186520050011-04-18
130.46Riverside Dr liftstation pumping 3-2 to 4-2-185760114015-04-18
375.78RNC electric heating 3-2 to 4-2-185225087020-04-18



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 3/7Page:04/19/2018 11:35 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 04/10/2018 - 04/23/2018
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: COMED

46.28Bikepath lighting OHDR 3-5 to 4-3-184083164187-04-18
81.53Brookwood liftstation 3-5 to 4-3-183168065033-04-18
35.78Whytegate Pk 3-5 to 4-3-183038275001-04-18
28.74Northampton san. sump meter 3-5 to 4-3-183038188003-04-18

110.41Spring Lake Park 3-2 to 4-2-181864074001-04-18
32.88Riverside Dr 2 streetlights 3-7 to 4-5-181475038068-04-18
53.02Entry sign Milw @ OHDR 3-5 to 4-3-180995113016-04-18

100.09Olde Mill liftstation 3-5 to 4-3-180777044014-04-18
5.30Riverwoods @ Everett streetlight 3-5 to 4-2-180339014158-04-18

87.44207 Northampton pumping 3-5 to 4-3-180268410000-04-18
874.00Rate 23 streetlighting master account 2-22 to 3-23-13427049011-04-18

2,902.93TOTAL VENDOR COMED

VENDOR NAME: CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC.
152.45Electric supply SLP 3-2- to 4-2-1811278928001

3,635.62Electric supply ESR pumping 3-2 to 4-2-1811270691501
284.36Electric supply Londonderry liftstation 3-2 to 4-2-1811272367601

4,072.43TOTAL VENDOR CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC.

VENDOR NAME: CROWN TROPHY
6.00Officer of the Year engraved plate10132

6.00TOTAL VENDOR CROWN TROPHY

VENDOR NAME: DIMEO BROS., INC.
10,834.00Emergency Water Main Repair @ 680 Barclay40875
9,800.00Water Service Leak Repair @ 7 Westwood40870

20,634.00TOTAL VENDOR DIMEO BROS., INC.

VENDOR NAME: DROPBOX
9.99April 2018 Dropbox fees2018-04

9.99TOTAL VENDOR DROPBOX

VENDOR NAME: DUSTCATCHERS & A LOGO MAT INC
31.25Floor Mat Rental Service for Village Hal46875
36.52Floor Mat Rental Service for Public Works46876

67.77TOTAL VENDOR DUSTCATCHERS & A LOGO MAT INC

VENDOR NAME: EXTRA SPACE STORAGE
297.00April Storage Fees For Special Event ItemsE0101

297.00TOTAL VENDOR EXTRA SPACE STORAGE

VENDOR NAME: FEDEX
62.38Overnight ship test results to IEPA 4-5-186-147-24137

62.38TOTAL VENDOR FEDEX

VENDOR NAME: FIRST COMMUNICATIONS
279.4103 2018- T-1 Line115742765

279.41TOTAL VENDOR FIRST COMMUNICATIONS

VENDOR NAME: FIRST MIDWEST BANK
464.6503 2018 Lockbox Service0318

464.65TOTAL VENDOR FIRST MIDWEST BANK

VENDOR NAME: FOREMAN, JD
216.00East Side Reservoir Repair322188

216.00TOTAL VENDOR FOREMAN, JD

VENDOR NAME: GAS DEPOT OIL COMPANY
2,312.14Diesel Fuel55176-1

2,312.14TOTAL VENDOR GAS DEPOT OIL COMPANY

VENDOR NAME: GEWALT HAMILTON ASSOCIATES



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 4/7Page:04/19/2018 11:35 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 04/10/2018 - 04/23/2018
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: GEWALT HAMILTON ASSOCIATES

4,050.00Engineering assistance with CRS reporting3794.010-2

4,050.00TOTAL VENDOR GEWALT HAMILTON ASSOCIATES

VENDOR NAME: GRAINGER, INC.
23.50Expandable File Folder9747298090
90.60Safety Glasses for PWF9749767720
55.32Yellow Slush Boots for Chris Fisher & James Egan9759261440
28.00Leak Repair & Sealer Roll9749363074

197.42TOTAL VENDOR GRAINGER, INC.

VENDOR NAME: GREEN ACRES LANDSCAPING
1,180.00Waste Debris Pick up - Village Corridor & Rt. 22 Me2018-4344
1,950.00Buckthorn Removal & Waste Fee2018-4345

3,130.00TOTAL VENDOR GREEN ACRES LANDSCAPING

VENDOR NAME: HAMPTON, LENZINI AND RENWICK, INC.
5,313.50DPR ped. bridge engineering service thru 3-31-1820180698

5,313.50TOTAL VENDOR HAMPTON, LENZINI AND RENWICK, IN

VENDOR NAME: HBK WATER METER SERVICE
750.00Large meter testing & repairs at various locations180248

750.00TOTAL VENDOR HBK WATER METER SERVICE

VENDOR NAME: HIGHLAND PARK, CITY OF
7,965.0903/2018 Water Purchase 3766cuft Metr 70327541009297-04-18

74,995.7903/2018 Water Purchase 35459 cuft Metr 16033582009348-04-18

82,960.88TOTAL VENDOR HIGHLAND PARK, CITY OF

VENDOR NAME: HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES
28.28Concrete Mix12642
19.88Concrete Mix12594
27.50Concrete Mix6013182
30.88Electrical Tape & Wire2011264
53.87Street Signs9735510
48.93Mailboxes8010481
79.40Storage Bin Parts8595939
10.44Gloves7010603
9.94Rubber Mallets9010625

13.41Filters4010991
14.91Mailboxes1011435
48.60Mailbox Posts and Concrete Mix11529
8.74Zinc Braces11570

26.67Village Hall Supplies - Lysol & Batteries7011865
38.64Bulbs for Village Hall6072499
21.94Tower Lights3012323
29.15Utility Knife & Scrapers3012324
67.74Storm Repair9012788
16.44Bulbs for Village Hall2013544

595.36TOTAL VENDOR HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: ILLINOIS EPA
10.00Drinking Water Operator Certification Renewal Fee f04092018BS

10.00TOTAL VENDOR ILLINOIS EPA

VENDOR NAME: ILLINOIS SECRETARY OF STATE
101.00Registration Squad 108B25907

101.00TOTAL VENDOR ILLINOIS SECRETARY OF STATE

VENDOR NAME: ILLINOIS STATE POLICE - B OF I
378.00Fingerprint Liquor License (Chipotle,Flemings,RegaIL049290L-033118

378.00TOTAL VENDOR ILLINOIS STATE POLICE - B OF I

VENDOR NAME: INTERIOR INVESTMENTS, LLC
89,286.00Sales Tax Sharing 1st Quarter 201803-31-2018



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 5/7Page:04/19/2018 11:35 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 04/10/2018 - 04/23/2018
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: INTERIOR INVESTMENTS, LLC

89,286.00TOTAL VENDOR INTERIOR INVESTMENTS, LLC

VENDOR NAME: JERSEY CAPE DIAGNOSTIC
267.752018 Season Tags Spring Lake Beach (500)21898

267.75TOTAL VENDOR JERSEY CAPE DIAGNOSTIC

VENDOR NAME: KINNUCAN COMPANY
304.001 Darby remove maple tree and stump344919
726.00Remove 32"aspen tree 2-8-18343756

1,030.00TOTAL VENDOR KINNUCAN COMPANY

VENDOR NAME: LAKE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
85,096.00Sanitary sewer treatment bill 2-16-18 to 3-15-18LCPW-03-30-18

85,096.00TOTAL VENDOR LAKE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS

VENDOR NAME: LAKE FOREST ACUTE CARE
75.00C. Leider Pre-Employment Drug Screen46734
75.00N. Barich Pre-Employment Drug Screen46727
75.00B. Gilbertson Pre-Employment Drug Screen46787
75.00N. Orihuela Pre-Employment Drug Screen46975
75.00H. Aronson Pre-Employment Drug Sreccn46995
75.00Z. Caswell Pre-Employment Drug Screen47017

450.00TOTAL VENDOR LAKE FOREST ACUTE CARE

VENDOR NAME: LALUZERNE & SMITH, LTD.
3,083.75Legal Services March 2018March 2018

3,083.75TOTAL VENDOR LALUZERNE & SMITH, LTD.

VENDOR NAME: LAWSON PRODUCTS INC
366.63Misc. Fleet Parts and Supplies9305711701

366.63TOTAL VENDOR LAWSON PRODUCTS INC

VENDOR NAME: LEARNING FOR LIFE
4,520.002018 Explorer Conference (2 Advisors and 6 Explor2018 Post#2403

4,520.00TOTAL VENDOR LEARNING FOR LIFE

VENDOR NAME: LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS
78.50March 2018 Computer, Internet, Phone Searches b1217074-20180331

78.50TOTAL VENDOR LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS

VENDOR NAME: LINCOLNSHIRE RIVERWOODS FPD
319.00Plan Review_1 Overlook Pt Suite 650_Shire Law Gr10148
715.00Plan Review 600 Barclay_Black Dog Speed Shop_10144
319.00Plan Review 1 Overlook Point_Shire Law Firm_P1810145
319.00Plan Review 4 Overlook Pt_AON_P18-0030B10147

1,672.00TOTAL VENDOR LINCOLNSHIRE RIVERWOODS FPD

VENDOR NAME: LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE-PETTY CASH
191.8504/23/18 Petty Cash Reimbursements04232018

191.85TOTAL VENDOR LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE-PETTY CASH

VENDOR NAME: MANEVAL CONSTRUCTION
7,100.00Water Leak Repair @ 95-97 Elm8813

7,100.00TOTAL VENDOR MANEVAL CONSTRUCTION

VENDOR NAME: MENONI & MOCOGNI, IN
477.73Torpedo Sand26441

477.73TOTAL VENDOR MENONI & MOCOGNI, IN

VENDOR NAME: MICHAEL MERANDA JR.
240.004/9/18 RVB/COW Mtg. & 4/10/18 Zoning Board Mtg181304



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 6/7Page:04/19/2018 11:35 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 04/10/2018 - 04/23/2018
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: MICHAEL MERANDA JR.

240.00TOTAL VENDOR MICHAEL MERANDA JR.

VENDOR NAME: MIDWEST PAVING EQUIPMENT, INC.
30,795.00Asphalt Repair Hot Box1339

30,795.00TOTAL VENDOR MIDWEST PAVING EQUIPMENT, INC.

VENDOR NAME: MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM21
884.00Starcom Monthly Use Rate April 2018349452282018

884.00TOTAL VENDOR MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM2

VENDOR NAME: N.BRANCH CHGO RIV WATERSHED WORKGRP
1,741.96Annual dues for watershed workgroupInv B.J.Burke-2018

1,741.96TOTAL VENDOR N.BRANCH CHGO RIV WATERSHED W

VENDOR NAME: NAPA-SHERIDAN AUTO PARTS
15.00Truck 730970797

15.00TOTAL VENDOR NAPA-SHERIDAN AUTO PARTS

VENDOR NAME: NASER & ALLISON BARDIC
3,800.00BD Tree Bond Refund - 22 VictoriaB15-0076T

3,800.00TOTAL VENDOR NASER & ALLISON BARDIC

VENDOR NAME: NATIONAL SAFETY COMPLIANCE, INC.
308.50Safety Compliance DVD's for PW100366

308.50TOTAL VENDOR NATIONAL SAFETY COMPLIANCE, INC

VENDOR NAME: NORTH SUBURBAN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COO
6,611.00May 2018 Dental Premiums2018-05

6,611.00TOTAL VENDOR NORTH SUBURBAN EMPLOYEE BENE

VENDOR NAME: NORTHEASTERN IL REGIONAL CRIME LAB
12,699.00Crime Lab Annual Assessment 2018-20191088

12,699.00TOTAL VENDOR NORTHEASTERN IL REGIONAL CRIME

VENDOR NAME: OFFICE DEPOT
359.80Binding of Explorer Post Annual Report604542675
691.50Printing and Binding of Police Dept Annual Report604542677

1,051.30TOTAL VENDOR OFFICE DEPOT

VENDOR NAME: PAYLOCITY
180.8104/13/18 Pay Services04132018

180.81TOTAL VENDOR PAYLOCITY

VENDOR NAME: PUTTERMAN ATHLETICS
69.81Windscreens0206872-IN

69.81TOTAL VENDOR PUTTERMAN ATHLETICS

VENDOR NAME: QUILL CORPORATION
326.12Ink, Envelopes, Binders, Notepads and soap6019871

326.12TOTAL VENDOR QUILL CORPORATION

VENDOR NAME: R. C. TOPSOIL
932.00Dirt for Restoration1800032

932.00TOTAL VENDOR R. C. TOPSOIL

VENDOR NAME: ROTARY CLUB OF LINCOLNSHIRE
194.004th Quarter Dues April-June7502

194.00TOTAL VENDOR ROTARY CLUB OF LINCOLNSHIRE

VENDOR NAME: RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 7/7Page:04/19/2018 11:35 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 04/10/2018 - 04/23/2018
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT

104.97(3) 2 Gallon Handheld Sprayers4878290
128.39Sharpened Chain Saw4870054

233.36TOTAL VENDOR RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT

VENDOR NAME: SIMPLEXGRINNEL LP
286.33VH Fire alarm test & inspect20053037

1,990.34Firelite fire alarm system at VH and PWF20022860

2,276.67TOTAL VENDOR SIMPLEXGRINNEL LP

VENDOR NAME: TKG ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES GROUPLLC
1,365.00Street Sweeping for the month of April - 20187535

1,365.00TOTAL VENDOR TKG ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES GR

VENDOR NAME: TRAFFIC & PARKING CONTROL CO
463.95Signs92185

463.95TOTAL VENDOR TRAFFIC & PARKING CONTROL CO

VENDOR NAME: UNIVERSITY OF ILLINO
70.00Commercial Pesticide Training & Certification for St84455

70.00TOTAL VENDOR UNIVERSITY OF ILLINO

VENDOR NAME: VANS ENTERPRISES, LTD
242.50Line Striper & White Paint for Striping9807

242.50TOTAL VENDOR VANS ENTERPRISES, LTD

VENDOR NAME: VERIZON WIRELESS
1,914.0503 2018 Cell Phone Svc & Squad Laptops9804500777

1,914.05TOTAL VENDOR VERIZON WIRELESS

VENDOR NAME: VIOLETTA MARKARYAN
26,320.50BD Escrow Partial Refund Eng Deposit_68/70 River04052018

26,320.50TOTAL VENDOR VIOLETTA MARKARYAN

VENDOR NAME: WATER PRODUCTS CO.
990.0014X24 Repair Clamp0279617
690.0014X16 Repair Clamp0279616
410.94Brass Flare Unit & Corp0279356
760.00Westminister Repair - Split MJ Glands0279674

2,850.94TOTAL VENDOR WATER PRODUCTS CO.

VENDOR NAME: WHOLESALE DIRECT, INC.
253.08Backhoe Mars Light000232825

253.08TOTAL VENDOR WHOLESALE DIRECT, INC.

VENDOR NAME: XEROX CORPORATION
178.00Coco copies base fee 2-21 to 3-21-1892733273-base charge
337.97Mimi copies 2-21 to 3-21-1892733272
57.00Nemo 2-21 to 3-21-1892733271

251.89Coco - billable color prints092733273-overage

824.86TOTAL VENDOR XEROX CORPORATION

441,147.00GRAND TOTAL:



Agenda Item
8.41 RVB

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
Regular Village Board Meeting

April 23, 2018
 

Subject: Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the Village of Lincolnshire to 
Participate in the Development of a Detailed Lake County 9-1-1
Consolidation Plan

Action Requested: Consideration and Approval (Waiver of First Reading Requested)

Originated By/Contact: Joseph Leonas, Chief of Police

Referred To: Mayor and Board of Trustees
 
Summary / Background:
In 2013, the Lake County Emergency Telephone Systems Board commissioned a high-level 
Phase 1 study to explore options for a county-wide consolidated 911 public safety call-taking 
model. 

In 2015, with consensus from elected and appointed officials, the Lake County 911 Emergency 
Dispatch Task Force (911 Task Force) was established to guide a Phase 2 study tasked with 
collecting data and reporting findings about specific emergency response agencies, technology, 
and infrastructure.

In 2017, XP and Baker Tilly completed the consolidation study, which the 911 Task Force 
reviewed and discussed over the course of several meetings. The County convened another 
group of elected leaders, municipal officials, and emergency dispatch experts to discuss the 
findings of the study in the hope of strengthening partnerships to help move towards a 
consolidated emergency dispatch model.

In 2018, Lake County, with a yet to be determined number of other communities, has committed 
to work on an implementation plan for 911 consolidation. The County has requested that local 
communities or dispatch centers approve resolutions and provide funding to hire a project 
manager to work with the group on developing specific implementation strategies for 911 
consolidation, including: a governance structure to serve as the decision-making body on behalf 
of all participating communities, cost sharing model and developing and adopting best practices 
for standardizing call taking operations, data collection and analysis, reporting, business 
processes, operational procedures, policies, technology, personnel practices, etc.

The attached Resolution authorizes the Village of Lincolnshire to participate in the initial phase 
of the Lake County 911 consolidation plan. The Village will be represented in the consolidation 
effort jointly as a member of the Vernon Hills Joint Emergency Telephone System Board 
(JETSB) and the Village will hold a full seat as a single representative. The next phase of the 
Lake County Consolidation plan requires a monetary contribution.  The JETSB will contribute 
the required $30,000 of which Lincolnshire will be responsible for one third or $10,000. 
Lincolnshire will also contribute an additional $10,000 to Lake County in order to have one full 
seat in the 911 consolidation planning process. Staff recommends that the attached Resolution 
and funds not to exceed $20,000 be approved.  

Budget Impact:
Participation in the Consolidation Study will require a one-time cost, not to exceed $20,000.
This expense is expected to be funded from the General Fund- Police Department budget.  The 
addition of this expenditure is not expected to exceed the Police Department’s total 



Agenda Item
8.41 RVB

appropriation for Fiscal Year 2018.  Savings related to unfilled positions should assist in 
absorbing this unplanned cost.

Service Delivery Impact:
No Change

Recommendation:
Staff recommends waiving of the first reading and approval of the resolution, as presented.

Reports and Documents Attached:
Resolution Authorizing the Village of Lincolnshire to Participate in the Development of a 
Detailed Lake County 9-1-1 Consolidation Plan
911 Consolidation Facts and Figures
911 Consolidation Update – 2-15-2018
Lake County and Lake County ETSB 911 Consolidation Study

Meeting History
Village Board (COW):
Regular Village Board Meeting April 23, 2018



RESOLUTION NO. ________

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE OF LINCONLSHIRE
TO PARTICIPATE IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 

DETAILED LAKE COUNTY 9-1-1 CONSOLIDATION PLAN. 

WHEREAS, the Village of Vernon Hills, the Village of Libertyville, the Village of 
Lincolnshire, the Countryside Fire Protection District, and the Rockland Fire Protection 
District are members of the Vernon Hills Communication Center through signed 
Intergovernmental Agreements; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the consolidation to the Vernon Hill Communication 
Center, each of the participating municipalities entered into a separate
intergovernmental agreement to form the Vernon Hills Communications Center Joint 
Emergency Telephone Systems Board (the “JETSB”); and

WHEREAS, the Countryside Fire Protection District is an ex officio, non-voting 
member of the JESTB; and

WHEREAS, Lake County and local partners have studied opportunities to 
enhance 9-1-1 communication service levels and gain efficiencies by consolidating more 
than one dozen independent primary and secondary Public Safety Answering Points 
(PSAP) in Lake County; and 

WHEREAS, a Lake County and Lake County ETSB 911 Consolidation Study 
including an assessment of the PSAP entities and communities in Lake County was 
completed in April 2017; and

WHEREAS, the Lake County and Lake County ETSB 911 Consolidation Study 
Report concluded that dispatch consolidation is a mutually beneficial path for public 
safety entities in Lake County; and 

WHEREAS, the potential benefits of dispatch consolidation include the following; 
reduced call transferring, enhanced coverage for 24/7 operations through increased 
staffing flexibility of well-staffed centers, more consistent and effective service delivery, 
greater opportunity for inter-agency response and/or back up, data sharing between 
agencies and responders in the field, expanded oversight, enhanced interoperability and 
the ability to share information across jurisdictions, operational savings, and reductions 
in future capital investment and duplicative technology maintenance agreements; and 

WHEREAS, all of the findings and recommendations from the report have been 
presented and shared in numerous meetings with community and public safety 
representatives; and 

WHEREAS, a more detailed examination by and dialogue among seriously 
interested public safety entities is needed to determine what service enhancements, 
efficiencies, and financial savings can be reached through regional consolidation of 
PSAP centers; and 



WHEREAS, the detailed examination and dialogue will be under the direction of 
a formal 911 Consolidation Governance Committee comprised of representatives from 
committed communities and ETSB’s, and 

WHEREAS, it is recommended that the 911 Consolidation Governance 
Committee select a project manager to lead the development of an implementation plan 
to identify and resolve issues, weigh alternatives and collect all dispatch data to examine 
the costs, call activity and workloads of interested communities, and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Lincolnshire will participate in the Lake County 911 
Consolidation effort as part of the JESTB, and will be responsible for a $10,000 portion 
of the $30,000 commitment of financial support towards this phase of the 911 
consolidation effort; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Lincolnshire will pay an additional $10,000 to Lake 
County in order to participate as an early adopter in the consolidation process outside of 
the JETSB participation: and  

WHEREAS, the Village of Lincolnshire herby finds that its commitment to the 
next phase of the 911 Consolidation effort in Lake County for all the reasons stated 
above is in the best interest of the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents of 
the Village of Lincolnshire.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND BOARD
OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1:  The Village of Lincolnshire, Board of Trustees authorizes the Mayor 
to sign the 911 Lake County 911 Consolidation Resolution.

SECTION 2:  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and 
approval as provided by law.

SECTION 3: The Village of Lincolnshire agrees to make their payments directly 
to Lake County as part of its commitment to the 911 consolidated efforts in Lake County. 
This allocation is based on an estimate, and any funds not expended towards this effort 
will be refunded. The Lincolnshire portion of the payment is not to exceed $20,000.
($10,000 JESTB contribution and $10,000 Village of Lincolnshire early adopter 
contribution).

SECTION 4: The 911 Consolidation Governance Committee shall meet regularly 
to discuss and make recommendations regarding the possible consolidation of 911 
Emergency Telephone Service Answering (inclusive of dispatch services) within Lake 
County into one or more 911 operations and dispatch center(s) to serve all committed 
jurisdictions. The target delivery date for sharing the implementation report developed by 
this Committee is early 2019.

SECTION 5: The 911 Consolidation Governance Committee is charged with
identifying all major implementation issues associated with 911 Dispatch consolidation, 
developing options and solutions for said issues, considering the operational impact of 
each alternative, sharing and documenting all findings, recommendations and best 
practices.



SECTION 6: The 911 Consolidation Governance Committee will work with the 
project manager and any necessary consultants to calculate cost estimates for various 
alternatives, and will make recommendations for the most effective and economical cost 
alternative for consolidation of services.

PASSED this 23rd day of April, 2018.

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

APPROVED this 24th day of April, 2018.

________________________________
Elizabeth J.Brandt, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________                                  
Barbara Mastandrea, Village Clerk



Impetus for Consolidation
In 2013, the Lake County Emergency Telephone Systems Board commissioned a 
high-level Phase 1 study to explore options for a consolidated 911 public safety 
call-taking model. In 2015, with consensus from elected and appointed officials, the 
Lake County 911 Emergency Dispatch Task Force (911 Task Force) was established to 
guide a Phase 2 study tasked with collecting data and reporting findings about specific 
emergency response agencies, technology, and infrastructure.  Later in 2015, the Illinois 
General Assembly enacted Public Act 99-0006 (P.A. 99-0006) to overhaul the state’s 911 
emergency response system.  In light of this legislation, the 911 Task Force agreed the 
Phase 2 study would recommend best-practices for consolidation, therefore exceeding 
the requirements of P.A. 99-0006.

Facts and Figures

Complexity of Current Environment

 52 municipalities

41 Law Enforcement agencies

30 Fire/EMS agencies

21 Emergency Telephone System 
Boards (ETSBs)

20 Communication Centers/Public 
Safety Answering Points (PSAPs)

Total Call Volume (2015 Figures)

Annually:
338,489

Per Capita:
0.48

Annually:
1,819,379

Per Capita:
2.58

911 Calls 10-Digit 
Calls

Total Calls
Current PSAPs Providing 

Dispatch Services 

for Lake County

Annually:
1,480,890

Per Capita:
2.10

2,000,000

1,500,000

1,000,000

500,000

0



Findings & Recommendations

FTE

(Recommended)
# of Facilities

Cost Savings

Current State Fully-Consolidated Model

233.5
• 13 Management/Support
• 220.5 Operational

192
• 20 Management/Support
• 172 Operational

2

$2,300,000+

20

-

*Cost savings could be greater, depending on management structure and current position attrition

Staffing and Cost Savings – Current & Fully-Consolidated Models

Fully-Consolidated Model 

• Implement regional governance model
• Migrate technology systems;  9-1-1 telephony and 
  CAD systems
• Standardize operations and training 
• Distribute load sharing of calls during major 
  incidents/call surges 
• Construct new, redundant facilities
• Decommission legacy facilities

Facility

Site 1 Headquarters
Future Site 2

Total Estimated 
Area (acres)

3.25
3.10

Fully-Consolidated Model – 
Site Recommendations

 

Criteria for Site Selection in 
Fully-Consolidated Model

 
 Room to accommodate growth (without major 
 capital spend)

 Distance from natural or industrial hazards   

- Access to redundant/alternatively-routed utilities

 Safe, welcoming area

Path to Regionalized 
Public Safety Communications

Benefits of Consolidation
There are a number of benefits that result when emergency communications functions are consolidated. 
These benefits include:
• Increased ability to handle incidents within a single Dispatch Center, even if they are multidisciplinary or     
  multi-jurisdictional incidents. This improves resource coordination, the timeliness of response and situational   
  awareness, all of which have positive impacts on incident outcome.
• Increased depth of staffing to better accommodate surges in call volumes, or multiple simultaneous major   
  incidents.
• Ability to share investments in more robust facilities and systems than can be accomplished through multiple  
  individual efforts.
• Ability to share long-term technology system lifecycle costs rather than multiple individual investment streams.
• Ability to create built-in redundancy and backup strategies within the regionalized facilities.
• Ability to offer more robust organizational staffing models.
• Ability to provide improved and more structured training.
• Ability to implement a more stringent Quality Assurance metrics program.
• Ability to offer career paths for the personnel that are not possible in smaller Centers.
• Ability to be positioned to adapt to growth without incurring significant additional capital investments.



Process
 •  Lake County ETSB sent invitations to all PSAPs and public safety agencies
 •  Eight focus group sessions scheduled to gather information about current public safety and dispatch  
    operations 
 •  51 attendees at one or more sessions 
 •  Most Law Enforcement and Fire/EMS agencies represented

Overall Focus Group Findings
 •  Scope of emergency services is similar across all agencies, but scale varies by jurisdiction.
 •  Service delivery is difficult with large number of agencies for day-to-day services, regional emergencies,  
    and seasonal population surges.
 •  Legislative mandates and fiscal constraints will catalyze consolidation.

Law Enforcement Focus Group Findings
 •  Lake County is diverse in terms of urbanization, levels of crime, daily and season population, and 
    geography.
 •  Most incidents are local, which can make coordinating multi-jurisdictional events challenging.
 •  Agencies have concerns about sacrificing level of service with consolidation.
 •  The Sheriff’s Office has a broad mix of roles.
 •  The Forest Preserve brings a unique set of challenges with variations in incidents and geography.
 •  Dispatch staff in medium-sized and smaller communication centers have a variety of additional duties.
 •  Consolidation would help expand the use of shared technology systems, which could help increase   
    inter-agency interoperability, coordination, and collaboration, while also providing cost sharing 
    opportunities.

Fire & EMS Focus Group Findings
 •  Consolidation needs to be coupled with law enforcement dispatching to ensure the most efficient fire  
    and EMS services.
 •  Call transfers in dispatching need to be eliminated.
 •  Fire alarm boards need to be supported.
 •  Further consolidation would improve coordination of multi-jurisdictional responses.
 •  Technology enhancements would make dispatching more efficient, timely, and improve level of service.
 •  Depth in fire dispatching may allow further levels of incident report.

Governance Discussions & Takeaways
 •  Regional radio interoperability is good, but it could be better. Migration to the STARCOM21 statewide  
    radio system provides a pathway to improved regional interoperability while also allowing local
    jurisdictions to be responsible for directly operating and maintaining radio systems.
 •  Dispatch centers are the primary activation point for warning sirens, and dispatch consolidation would  
    require warning siren functions to be consolidated as well.
 •  Area police and fire chiefs should bear the responsibility of setting operational policies and practices, and  
    consideration should be given to jurisdictional size.
 •  Top-level governance must be carefully considered with respect to ETSB consolidation and influence over  
    policies and operations.
 •  A funding mechanism for consolidation must be implemented and clearly communicated to area 
    stakeholders.

Focus Group Findings



In
 2

01
4,

 e
le

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 

offi
ci

al
s o

ve
rw

he
lm

in
g 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
in

te
re

st
 in

 e
xp

lo
rin

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

fo
r 9

11
 c

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

at
 a

 L
ea

de
rs

 
Su

m
m

it,
 a

nd
 su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 re
gi

on
al

 
ro

un
d 

ta
bl

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
. A

s a
 re

su
lt,

 
th

e 
Co

un
ty

 h
el

d 
th

re
e 

m
ee

tin
gs

 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 fo
r m

ay
or

s, 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
or

s, 
an

d 
po

lic
e 

an
d 

fir
e 

offi
ci

al
s f

ro
m

 a
cr

os
s t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
to

 
di

sc
us

s t
hi

s i
ss

ue
, p

ro
vi

de
 in

pu
t 

in
to

 th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 a

 ta
sk

 fo
rc

e,
 

an
d 

gi
ve

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 o
n 

th
e 

dr
af

t R
FP

 
Sc

op
e 

of
 W

or
k 

fo
r a

 p
ha

se
 tw

o 
st

ud
y.

 

In
 e

ar
ly

 2
01

6,
 th

e 
Co

un
ty

 
co

nv
en

ed
 a

 la
rg

e 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

el
ec

te
d 

le
ad

er
s, 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 

offi
ci

al
s, 

an
d 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
di

sp
at

ch
 e

xp
er

ts
 to

 d
is

cu
ss

 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
fin

di
ng

s o
f t

he
 

co
ns

ol
id

at
io

n 
st

ud
y.

  L
at

er
 th

at
 

ye
ar

, t
he

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
ou

ld
 h

ol
d 

se
ve

ra
l m

or
e 

m
ee

tin
gs

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

up
da

te
s o

n 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
se

ct
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 st
ud

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
, l

eg
is

la
tio

n,
 a

nd
 

le
ss

on
s l

ea
rn

ed
.  

IX
P 

an
d 

Ba
ke

r T
ill

y 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
th

e 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

st
ud

y,
 w

hi
ch

 
th

e 
La

ke
 C

ou
nt

y 
91

1 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

D
is

pa
tc

h 
Ta

sk
 

Fo
rc

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 
ov

er
 th

e 
co

ur
se

 o
f s

ev
er

al
 

m
ee

tin
gs

. T
od

ay
, t

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
ha

s c
on

ve
ne

d 
an

ot
he

r g
ro

up
 

of
 e

le
ct

ed
 le

ad
er

s, 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 
offi

ci
al

s, 
an

d 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

di
sp

at
ch

 e
xp

er
ts

 to
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s o
f t

he
 st

ud
y.

  T
he

 
Co

un
ty

 lo
ok

s f
or

w
ar

d 
to

 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 th
es

e 
co

nv
er

sa
tio

ns
, a

s w
el

l a
s 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 to

 
he

lp
 m

ov
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
 

co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

di
sp

at
ch

 m
od

el
.

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

In
 2

01
3,

 th
e 

La
ke

 C
ou

nt
y 

ET
SB

 (r
ep

re
se

nt
in

g 
17

 L
ak

e 
Co

un
ty

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

) 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 a
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

l 
Ph

as
e 

1 
st

ud
y 

to
 e

xp
lo

re
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r a

 m
or

e 
co

ns
ol

id
at

ed
 9

11
 p

ub
lic

 
sa

fe
ty

 c
al

l t
ak

in
g 

m
od

el
.

A
 m

ul
ti-

ju
ris

di
ct

io
na

l t
ea

m
 

hi
re

d 
IX

P, 
in

 c
oo

pe
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 B
ak

er
 T

ill
y,

 to
 c

on
du

ct
 

th
e 

Ph
as

e 
2 

w
or

k.
 T

he
 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 te

am
 m

et
 w

ith
 

PS
A

P’
s a

nd
 o

th
er

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 to

 c
ol

le
ct

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
da

ta
 a

bo
ut

 e
ac

h 
PS

A
P, 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

in
iti

al
 

fin
di

ng
s. 

La
ke

 C
ou

nt
y 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 h

av
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 
w

or
k 

on
 a

n 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

 
fo

r 9
11

 c
on

so
lid

at
io

n.
 T

hi
s s

pr
in

g,
 

th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

re
so

lu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 h
ire

 a
 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
gr

ou
p 

on
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 fo

r 9
11

 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
 a

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
to

 se
rv

e 
as

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
-m

ak
in

g 
bo

dy
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 a

ll 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, c
os

t s
ha

rin
g 

m
od

el
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

nd
 a

do
pt

in
g 

be
st

 
pr

ac
tic

es
 fo

r s
ta

nd
ar

di
zi

ng
 c

al
l 

ta
ki

ng
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

, d
at

a 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

an
d 

an
al

ys
is

, r
ep

or
tin

g,
 b

us
in

es
s 

pr
oc

es
se

s, 
op

er
at

io
na

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s, 

po
lic

ie
s, 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
, p

er
so

nn
el

 
pr

ac
tic

es
, e

tc
. 20
18

9
1
1
 R

e
g

i
o

n
a

l
 C

o
n

s
o

l
i
d

a
t

i
o

n
 

T
i
m

e
l
i
n

e



1 
 

 
911 Consolidation Update 2-15-2018 

Stakeholders recently presented some new questions, and this seeks to answer 
them based on the information we have: 

What is the purpose of collecting funding from participating public safety 
agencies (PSA’s)?   

Whether there are 10 or 20 PSA’s who participate in developing an implementation plan, there are 
many questions yet to be answered. We met with many of you to ask the question, “What do you need 
to make a decision on 911 consolidation?”  What we heard was, we need a plan and answers to most of 
the unanswered questions.  To do that, the group will need a project manager to work with the 
governance board and operations board to consider alternatives, propose solutions, and seek consensus 
on that strategy/solution for each question.  

The proposal is for the participating agency to work together and hire a project manager who 
represents, reports to and acts on behalf of the group of participating agencies.  That project manager 
will work with the participating agencies to set up temporary governance structure to oversee the work 
of developing a detailed implementation plan.  The project manager, along with the PSA's, will need to 
go through a process to evaluate and determine:  

Call volumes 
Technology systems 
Cost allocation models 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP's) 
Staffing structures 

Staff salary structures 
Site locations 
Other items as specified by the PSA’s. 
(see more detail below)    

 

The goal at the end of this effort will be to have enough answers, so that each 
PSA has the information they need to make an informed decision about 911 
consolidation. 

Cost share for 2018 implementation plan:  
Lake County has heard from some smaller agencies that a contribution of $30,000 is prohibiting 
participation in the next phase of 911 consolidation.  The funding from each community is necessary to 
pay a project manager and to collect and analyze the data from each PSAP and each information 
system.   We want to encourage participation and offer the following clarification to address this 
impediment.  

Clarification on the cost for participation in the implementation plan for centers 
with multiple PSA’s and shared information systems: 
For PSA’s already operating out of a consolidated center, the participation cost model is as follows:  



2 
 

Equal share cost of $30,000; plus $10,000 for every PSA within that single center who is 
participating in this consolidation implementation planning project.   

Example of Consolidated Center w/ 4 PSA’s participating: 

Equal share  $30,000 
1 PSA $10,000 
1 PSA $10,000 
1 PSA $10,000 
1 PSA $10,000 
TOTAL $70,000 

 
The example is intended to demonstrate how to calculate the PSA contribution.  How each 
center/agency funds their total contribution is up to that collection of PSAs.    

The goal is to have the maximum number of PSA’s participate.   

What is the plan?   
The plan is to determine which PSA’s are interested enough to participate in setting up a governance 
structure, hiring a project manager, working with the project manager to establish a work plan that will 
lead the group through a process to answer with specificity the remaining unanswered questions about 
regional 911 consolidation.   

What are some of the unanswered questions?  
Public safety agencies (PSA’s) want to know: how will it work, what will it cost, how does it impact me, 
my agency and my constituencies?   

How will decisions be made on behalf of participants or what is the governance 
structure?  
 The Phase 2 report suggested a two-tier approach to a policy governance board and an operations 
board, plus sub-committees to work on issues and challenges as they arise.   

What funding model will be used?   
The Phase 2 report provided four models for consideration plus some best practice insights on cost 
allocation.   Models being for the consolidated center cost allocation: 

a. Call volume and population 
b. Equal share and population 
c. Equal share, population and equalized value 
d. Equal share, population, equalized value, and call volume  

What is the projected call volume? How many staff will be needed?  
The participating PSA’s will need to re-calculate these staffing numbers based on which agencies 
participate.  What are the personnel considerations?   

a. Union/non-union  
b. Salary and pay structure  
c. Accruals including sick, vacation, personal time, etc. 



3 
 

What technology platforms will the consolidated center use? 

a. Record Management Systems RMS  
b. 911 & Telephony  
c. Cad/Mobile  
d. Radio Console Systems  
e. Logging Recording  
f. Fire Alarm Boards 

What is the size of the center and how will the site be selected?  
The size of the center will be determined by how many PSA’s participate and which PSA’s participate – 
due to call volumes and current staffing levels.  

What are the standardizing policies and procedures?   
We don’t all do business the same way.  Most call taking functions can be standardized; however, there 
will likely be variability in the level of response by community.  Example: We should standardize 
determining call type codes and on-air radio procedures, but when it comes to determining the types of 
calls PSA’s respond to and the levels of resources sent to those calls, there will need to be the ability to 
meet differing community expectations levels.       

How will PSA’s and/or the center handle non-emergency calls?   
The next phase of analysis and implementation plan will seek to answer this question.  

How will police agencies support secure detention needs and detention 
monitoring?  
The next phase of analysis and implementation plan will seek to answer this question. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

These questions/answers were previously shared with the stakeholders in 
January 2018.  

Who will have a seat on the Consolidation Committee?  
Each committed community will have a seat on the Consolidation Committee, as well as a seat on the 
Operations Committee. If the size of these committees become too large to perform their work, then 
the Consolidation Committee can propose potential solutions, such as breaking the group up into sub-
committees to work on specific issues. The entity passing the resolution and appropriating the funds will 
designate who they wish to represent them. 

What entity will act as the fiduciary agent on behalf of the Consolidation 
Committee? 
The County will serve as the fiduciary agent as the Consolidation Committee is being formed. Following 
the forming of the Consolidation Committee, they will be responsible for making decisions on behalf of 
all of the partners. 

What will the $30,000 contribution be used to fund?  
The main expense will be a staff member to work as a project manager on behalf of the Consolidation 
Committee. It is estimated that this alone may cost in the range of $130,000 or more considering the 
Consolidation Committee may need to contract with GovHR or Salum or another temporary service 
personnel business to hire a PM for one year. 

Why additional study is proposed?  
The Phase II Study outlines three or four potential governance structures and financial models. The 
committed communities need to determine which one works the best for the Lake County committed 
communities. There are several different technology platforms in use by Lake County communities, 
what are the technological requirements for a consolidated 911 center and which specific technologies 
are best able to meet those needs. What operational differences occur throughout Lake County Public 
Safety Entity and what consistency or standardizations need to be achieved prior to consolidation? In 
addition, to calculate actual cost, the group of committed communities needs to be defined, the number 
and type of calls each public safety entity receives and detailed information related to call expected 
service levels need to be documented. 

How long will it take to complete this review?  
This is dependent on the time it takes collect the commitment resolutions and stand up the 
Consolidation Committee. The Consolidation Committee will then have to hire staff and issue contracts 
to support the work of the group. In addition, each committed Public Safety Entity will need to collect, 
scrub and analyze their data along with the data from other communities. We estimate this to be a year, 
or so. 

What happens when this analysis is complete?  
The goal for 2018 is to analyze and develop answers together for as many of the outstanding questions 
as we can—beginning with the most important and impactful, and working our way through. In hearing 
from communities, they want enough information to be able to make an educated decision on 911 



5 
 

consolidation for their agency or community. What are the service level enhancements? What is the 
cost? What operational modifications are expected? 

 

*We will continue to update this document as communities submit more 
questions. 

 


	1.0 Agenda
	2.1 04-09-2018 Minutes
	3.11_Appt_Trustee
	3.13_Various_Annual_Appts
	3.14_Arbor_Day_Proclamation
	3.31_2018_03_Revenue_and_Expense_Summary
	4.1_2018_04_23_Bills
	8.41_Joint ETSB Consolidation Study

	Return to Agenda: 


